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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Exterior: This building was constructed of stuccoed brick painted
white; 7t is two stories over a high basement with rusticated masonry.
The portico is supported by four giant-order unfluted Ionic columns with
Renaissance capitals in Palladian stance upon balustraded pedestals.

The pediment is denticulated and has in it triptych Gothic windows.

The basement's front elevation has a central segmented arch flanked to
either side by a semicircular arch. Originally open, the arches have

been glazed. The portico facade is a deeply-convex apse with second-

story balconies and wrought-iron railings.

The windows under the portico on the main floor are triple sash, while
the second floor has balconies; to either side of the portico are
Gothic flanking windows. The watertable is sandstone.

Interior: The house has a ballroom and an elaborate drawing room and
parior on the main floor; the main upper-story rooms are bedrooms. The
ceilings of the ballroom, drawing room, and parlor are of worked plaster,
and the rooms have carved marble mantels; the original wood floors and
plastered walls remain throughout the house. An impressive feature of
the house, a flying staircase, extends from ground level to the attic,
rising four stories.

The interior, although quite original and imaginative, lacks repose from
its excessive elaboration; one is given to believe that much of the
interior decor was carried out at later periods by successive owners.
(Albert Simons, FAIA)

Surroundings: The house is now an administration and recreation
building surrounded by other school buildings on the Ashley Hall School
campus. Large hardwood trees shade the lot and the approaches are
banked with well-kept shrubbery.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Constructed ca. 1816, Ashley Hall was once the home of wealthy Charleston
merchants. Distinctive architecturally, it now serves as a private
school for girls.

Architecture: Although Ashley Hall has been attributed to William

Jay, the exuberance of the structure is foreign to the classic restraint
of that architect. The structure's attribution to Jay was based upon
the high elevation of the main floor above the ground and the height of
the principal rooms; in addition, the unusual expression of triptych
Gothic windows in the otherwise classic revival pediment are indicative
of Jay's designs.

The portico is carried by four giant-order unfluted Ionic columns with
Scamozzi capitals placed in a Palladian stance. Behind the portico is a
deeply convex apse with second-story balconies with wrought-iron railings.

The interior curved walls echo the apsidal niche of the portico and
the extruded semicircular balconies to either side of the building.

The entire house rests upon a high basement with arcade, the arches of
which-eche the stance of the columns of the portico.

In the architectural survey of Charleston, a jury composed of Dr. William
Murtagh, Keeper of the National Register of Historic Places, Professor
Bernard Lemann, Tulane University School of Architecture, Mr. Carl Feiss
and Mr. Russell Wright, consultants to the city, noted this structure as
exceptional. The notation indicates that the building is of the highest
architectural design quality, well-proportioned, and architecturally
sophisticated. Windows, classical orders or other period designs,
chimneys, verandas, massing, materials, textures, refined detail, and
craftsmanship are all elegant and innovative. The structure is to be
preserved and protected in situ at all costs.

Commerce and Politics: In 1838 James R. Pringle bought the house.

Pringle was a prominent Unionist during the Nullification controversy and
a member of the state legislature from 1808 to 1818. At the time he bought
the house, Pringle was the collector of customs for the port of Charleston.

Pringle sold the house to George A. Trenholm in 1845. Trenholm was a
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8. Significance (continued) Ashley Hall

wealthy merchant and financier who became Secretary of the Confederate
Treasury in 1864. He was president of the John Fraser trading house,
which had a branch in Liverpool. This company, known as Fraser,
Trenholm, and Company acted on behalf of the Confederate States of
America in purchasing European goods. Trenholm also controlled a fleet

of blockade runners that carried cotton through the Federal naval
blockades.

Education: In 1909 Mary Vardrine McBee founded Ashley Hall, a preparatory

school for girls.

Charleston Deeds lists Patrick Duncan as acquiring ownership of this

property in 1798. In 1802 the Charleston City Directory gave the
address of Duncan as being "over Cannon's Bridge" which includes the
area that is today Rutledge Avenue. Although land ownership is dated

as early as the turn of the century, architecturally the house appears
to have been constructed ca. 1816.

The historic name of this structure refers to James Nicholson, who
owned the house from 1829 to 1838.
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